
AGENDA 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 

   Henry Fuertes           Linda Cowles 
       P&Z CHAIRPERSON         P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

  
Matthew Hanks          Mary Starr 
  

          
     Daniel Tunstall       Ginger McFadden  

    
        

 
     Vacant 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

JUNE 17, 2013  6:30 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

June 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2013, 
AT 6:30 P.M., 2ND FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, 
PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Approve the Minutes of the June 3, 2013, P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 
p.m. 

 
III. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION 
NO. 2013-09Z  

 
A request of Expre Realty, applicant and owner, for approval of a zone change 
from the General Business (GB) zone to the General Commercial (GC) zone on 
the following described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Being lots 4-10 in a subdivision of 4.512 acres of land being 
the north 1.663 acres of lot 77 and the south 2.849 acres of lot 80, of the Figland 
Orchards Subdivision H.T.&B.R.R.Co. Survey Section 13, A-240, recorded in 
Vol. 3, Page 77, Plat Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: Southwest corner of Bardet and Wagon Trail 

 
B. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION 

NO. 2013-10Z 
  
A request of Lynn Almond of Bay Area Equestrian Properties, LP, applicant and 
owner, for approval of a zone change from the Single Family Residential (R-1) 
zone to the General Business (GB) zone on the following described property, to 
wit: 

 
Legal Description: Being lots 22-29 and lots 34-39 in a subdivision of 14.458 
acres of land out of the Narregang Subdivision, Plat Records of Brazoria County, 
Texas. 

 
General Location: 1908 Broadway St.  
 
 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

June 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

 

C. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION 
NO. 2013-11Z 
 
A request of Chris Lynch of Gehan Homes, LP, applicant, on behalf of T & B 
Alexander Family Ltd. Partnership, owner, for approval of a zone change from 
the General Commercial (GC) zone to the Single Family Residential (R-1) zone 
on the following described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Being a 19.4462 acre tract of land located in the 
H.T.&B.R.R. Co. Survey, section 1, Abstract No. 233 and the D.H.H. Hunter 
Survey, Abstract No. 76, Brazoria County, Texas, being a part of Lot 42, 
Zychlinski Subdivision, a map or plat of which is recorded in Volume 29 on Page 
43, and the remainder of Lot 4, Walcotts Pearland Subdivision, a map or plat of 
which is recorded in Volume 35 on Page 241, also being all or part of the certain 
11.291 acre tract and 58.723 acre tract conveyed by the Estate of Anten Halik to 
A. Guy Crouch, Jr. per deed dated December 15, 1972 and recorded in Volume 
1143 o n page 854, all referenced deeds and maps are recorded in the Deed 
Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Old Alvin Rd approximately 500 feet south of McHard Rd. 

 
 

D. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - MASTER PLAT OF SHADOW 
RIDGE 
 

A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry Gilberts and associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Ralph S. Davis Family Bypass Trust,  owner for approval of a Master 
Plat of Shadow Ridge, a commercial and residential subdivision on 48 acres of 
land, generally located at the 13000 Block of Broadway. 

 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 48 acres of land out of the William Pettus 
League Survey, A-68 City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Fort Bend County, 
Texas. 
 
General Location: 13000 Block of Broadway. 
 

 

E.   DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 
2. Election of Officers, July 1, 2013 
3. Next P&Z/JPH Regular Meeting – July 15, 2013 
4. Unified Development Code Updates (T-15 and T-16) 

 

Decision 
Date: 

 
6/21/13 

 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

June 17, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
I, Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public at City 
Hall on the 14th day of June, 2013, A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk 
 
 
Agenda removed  __________________  day of June 2013. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL  
 

OF 
 

MINUTES 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

June 3, 2013 
Page 1 of 6 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS,  HELD ON MONDAY, JUNE 3, 
2013, AT 6:30 P.M., 2ND FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, 
PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. with the following 
present: 
 

P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles 
P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr 
P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden 
 

Also in attendance were:  City Planner Harold Ellis, Planner II Ian Clowes, Assistant City 
Engineer Richard Mancilla, and Administrative Clerk Debbie Cody. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion was made by Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles to approve the minutes of May 20, 2013 
the P&Z Regular Meeting and seconded by Commissioner Mary Starr.  The vote to approve was 
5 – 0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - WAIVER OF DECISION OF TIME -   
PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SOUTHERN TRAILS SECTION 15  

 
A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilberts and Associates, applicant, on behalf of 
CL Ashton Woods, LP, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Southern Trails 
Section 15, a 42 lot single-family residential subdivision.  
 
Legal Description: Being 20.2 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, 
Section 84 A-538 and Section 80 A-564, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas, also 
being out of Allison-Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision as recorded in 
Volume 2, Page 98 B.C.P.R. 
 
General Location: The northwest corner of Kirby Dr. and Magnolia Crossing.  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Daniel Tunstall and seconded by Commissioner 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

June 3, 2013 
Page 2 of 6 

 

Mary Starr. 
 
Planner II Ian Clowes reported that the reason for the request for waiver of decision was 
simply that the applicant needed more time to address the comments made on the plat.  
The vote was called and was 5-0 for approval. 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SOUTHERN 
TRAILS SECTION 15  

  
A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilberts and Associates, applicant, on behalf of 
CL Ashton Woods, LP, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Southern Trails 
Section 15, a 42 lot single-family residential subdivision.  
 
Legal Description: Being 20.2 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, 
Section 84 A-538 and Section 80 A-564, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas, also 
being out of Allison-Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision as recorded in 
Volume 2, Page 98 B.C.P.R. 
 
General Location: The northwest corner of Kirby Dr. and Magnolia Crossing.  
 
There was no action necessary due to approval of a waiver of decision of time. 

 
 

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - WAIVER OF DECISION  OF TIME - 
PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SHADOW OAKS SECTION 1 

 
A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilberts and Associates, applicant, on behalf of 
Richard Marek of KB Homes, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Shadow Oaks 
Section 1, a 130 lot single-family residential subdivision. 
 
Legal Description: Being 52.1 acres of land located in the A.B. Langerman Survey, A-
555, City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location: The southern intersection of Broadway St. and Windward Bay Dr. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Mary Starr and seconded by Commissioner 
Daniel Tunstall.   
 
Planner II Ian Clowes reported that the applicant needed more time to address the 
comments made on the plat.  He illustrated the thoroughfare plan on the map and 
stated that originally there were some ownership issues where it looked like it would 
need to be platted without the road connecting, but the issues were resolved.  There 
were no questions or comments and a vote was taken for approval at 5-0. 
  



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

June 3, 2013 
Page 3 of 6 

 

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SHADOW 
OAKS SECTION 1 

 

A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilberts and Associates, applicant, on behalf of 
Richard Marek of KB Homes, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Shadow Oaks 
Section 1, a 130 lot single-family residential subdivision. 
 
Legal Description: Being 52.1 acres of land located in the A.B. Langerman Survey, A-
555, City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location: The southern intersection of Broadway St. and Windward Bay Dr. 
 
There was no action necessary due to approval of a waiver of decision of time. 

 

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - WAIVER OF DECISION OF TIME -  
FINAL PLAT OF RIVERSTONE RANCH AT CLEAR CREEK SECTION 1 

 
A request by Warren Escovy – LJA Engineering Inc., applicant, on behalf of Meritage 
Homes of Texas, LLC, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Riverstone Ranch at 
Clear Creek Section 1, a 59 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being a subdivision of 34.055 acres of land situated in the T.J. 
Green Survey, Abstract 290, City of Pearland, Harris County, Texas also being a Replat 
of lots 41, 42, 54-61, 70, 73-78, 90 and 91 of the Allison Richey Gulf Coast, Section “G”, 
a subdivision of record in Volume 4, Page 48, Map Records of Harris County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Southeast of Riverstone Ranch Drive, approximately 1200 feet 
south of the City of Houston ETJ border, Pearland, TX. 
 
A motion was made by Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles and seconded by Commissioner 
Ginger McFadden. 
 
Planner II Ian Clowes presented the staff report explaining that most of the comments 
had been addressed by the applicant, but the reason for the request for waiver of 
decision of time was due to the need for park land dedication.  When the cluster plan 
was approved, it required park land dedication as opposed to park land fees and there 
was no allowance for such dedication with this final plat submittal.  The applicant had 
stated that they potentially had land they could use, but they were not sure so they were 
looking to see if a bond could be done.  According to Mr. Clowes, it is not something 
that is normally done and therefore the applicant would need to either dedicate park 
land at this time or amend the cluster plan to allow for payment in lieu of the dedication.  
The request for waiver was to allow more time to work out the details.  A vote was taken 
and approved 5-0. 

 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

June 3, 2013 
Page 4 of 6 

 

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - FINAL PLAT OF RIVERSTONE 
RANCH AT CLEAR CREEK SECTION 1 

 
A request by Warren Escovy – LJA Engineering Inc., applicant, on behalf of Meritage 
Homes of Texas, LLC, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Riverstone Ranch at 
Clear Creek Section 1, a 59 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being a subdivision of 34.055 acres of land situated in the T.J. 
Green Survey, Abstract 290, City of Pearland, Harris County, Texas also being a Replat 
of lots 41, 42, 54-61, 70, 73-78, 90 and 91 of the Allison Richey Gulf Coast, Section “G”, 
a subdivision of record in Volume 4, Page 48, Map Records of Harris County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Southeast of Riverstone Ranch Drive, approximately 1200 feet 
south of the City of Houston ETJ border, Pearland, TX. 
 
No action was necessary due to approval of the waiver of decision for time. 
 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Zoning Update – City Planner Harold Ellis reported on 2 zone changes from the 
previous agenda, the first being at 4608 Walnut which was awaiting the second 
reading and the second being a request to change the zoning from General 
Business (GB) to General Commercial (GC) which the P&Z recommended 
denial.  Lastly, was a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a carwash which is 
awaiting the first reading by Council.   
 

2. Commissioners Activity Report – Chairperson Henry Fuertes wanted to discuss 
detention ponds and open space but deferred to the workshop to be held after 
the meeting. 

 
3. National APA Conference Overview - City Planner Harold Ellis suggested that 

each of the commissioners who attended the National APA Conference give a 
brief overview of that conference.   
 
Chairperson Henry Fuertes talked about the presentation that was given 
regarding a big box coming to town without mentioning names.  It was given from 
the perspective of city staff, a commissioner, and a council member.  There were 
many comments after the presentation from people after who were appreciative 
of the insightful honesty.  
 
Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles stated that she was very grateful to be allowed to 
go to this conference.  One of the workshops she attended was about parks and 
having a sense of place.  They talked about the importance of community input 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

June 3, 2013 
Page 5 of 6 

 

and the processes of charrettes to gather ideas.  She also went to another 
workshop about aging and the baby boomer generation.  Being there will be 
millions of people from that generation in our community as senior citizens, what 
is the city doing to plan for those people who at some point, will no longer be 
driving.   She also went to a workshop about form based codes versus what the 
city is currently doing.  She liked the idea of having these transition areas, where 
you have areas that transition from one zone to another.  Lastly, there was a 
workshop she stumbled upon regarding ethics.  She learned that staff has to 
walk a fine line when it comes to dealing with developers and maintaining 
professionalism and expressed her appreciation of staff for what they do. 
 
Commissioner Ginger McFadden went to a workshop for planning 
commissioners which presented a very thorough overview of the planning 
process. She also attended one on ethical decision making and another on what 
a suburban planner is to do.  She noted that many people at the convention 
noticed that she was from Pearland and were impressed with that. Among other 
workshops attended was one on arts and parks and how there are many 
connecting trails among the different communities and also one regarding the 
use of social media and mobile apps as a means of obtaining feedback.  She 
mentioned that the ethics workshop suggested that the commissioners should 
have a city email address so that if anything happened, the planners would have 
a specific email address related to city business.  City Planner Harold Ellis 
mentioned that it could possibly be in the works already.  Vice-Chairperson 
Cowles also mentioned a workshop that talked about due process and what we 
are not supposed to say and added that one of the persons on the panel 
suggested that anyone who got up to speak in the Planning & Zoning meeting 
should be sworn in. 
 
The staff overview of the convention was deferred to another time. 
 

4. Commission notification of upcoming cases (DRC agenda) – City Planner Harold 
Ellis explained that the Commissioners would be receiving a copy of the 
Development Review Committee Agendas to keep them informed of upcoming 
plats, zone changes and various activities.  Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles 
mentioned an interest in attending Pre-Development meetings also, however it 
could only be those meetings that the Commission would not be directly involved 
in.  
 

5. Next P&Z/JPH Regular Meeting – June 17, 2013 – Vice-Chairperson Linda 
Cowles mentioned that she would not be able to attend the next meeting, nor 
Commissioner Daniel Tunstall.  With the absence of Commissioner Matthew 
Hanks from this meeting, it would be verified that the four remaining 
commissioners would be able to attend.  Planner II Ian Clowes mentioned that 
there would be three zone changes presented at the upcoming meeting. 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

June 3, 2013 
Page 6 of 6 

 

6. Election of Officers, July 1, 2013 – It was announced that the July 1, 2013 P&Z 
Regular Meeting would include election of officers (Chair and Vice-Chair) to the 
Commission. 

 
ADJOURNMENT- Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the meeting at 7:02 PM. 
 
 
These minutes are respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 17th day of June 2013, A.D.  
 

            __________________________________  
           P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 

 



 
 
 
 
 

NEW 
BUSINESS 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

A 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 

TEXAS, TO BE HELD JUNE 17, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE COUNCIL 

CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2013-09Z 
 
A request of Expre Realty, applicant and owner, for approval of a zone change 
from the General Business (GB) zone to the General Commercial (GC) zone on 
the following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being lots 4-10 in a subdivision of 4.512 acres of land being the 
north 1.663 acres of lot 77 and the south 2.849 acres of lot 80, of the Figland 
Orchards Subdivision H.T.&B.R.R.Co. Survey Section 13, A-240, recorded in Vol. 3, 
Page 77, Plat Records of Brazoria County, Texas.  
 
 
General Location:  Southwest corner of Bardet and Wagon Trail 
 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 

 

A. STAFF REPORT 

B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 

IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 

 

V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 

please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 

meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-09Z 

Page 1 
 

       

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF JUNE 17, 2013 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2013-09Z 
 

A request of Expre Realty, applicant and owner, for approval of a zone change from 
the General Business (GB) zone to the General Commercial (GC) zone on the 
following described property, to wit: 

 

Legal Description: Being lots 4-10 in a subdivision of 4.512 acres of land being the 
north 1.663 acres of lot 77 and the south 2.849 acres of lot 80, of the Figland 
Orchards Subdivision H.T.&B.R.R.Co. Survey Section 13, A-240, recorded in Vol. 3, 
Page 77, Plat Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

General Location: Southwest corner of Bardet and Wagon Trail, Pearland, TX 
 
 
APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application will be considered as follows: 
 
 

Planning and Zoning Commission June 17, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:                July 8, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:          July 22, 2013* 

  
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Expre Realty applicant and owner, is requesting approval of a zone 
change from the General Business (GB) zone to the General Commercial (GC) zone for 
the above referenced location.  If approved, this zone change will allow the applicant to 
build additional buildings for office warehouse use to rent to future tenants. The 
property consists of 7 lots, 6 of which are vacant.  The applicant is proposing to build 
buildings on each of the vacant lots. There is currently one building located on one of 
the 7 lots. The building is used for office warehouse use.  
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 

 Zoning Land Use 

North Neighborhood Services (NS) Elks Lodge 
South Neighborhood Services (NS Vacant 



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-09Z 

Page 2 
 

East Single Family Res. (R-2) Residential Homes 
West Neighborhood Services (NS Vacant  

 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  As previously 
mentioned, the property is currently zoned General Business (GB). The applicant is 
seeking a zone change to General Commercial (GC).  The property is currently platted into 
7 separate lots. The current lots are not in conformance with the lot width requirement of 
either the GB or GC zones.  
 

 GB/GC Actual 
Lot Width 150’ 120’ 

Lot Depth 125’ 125’ 

Total Lot Area 22,500 Sq. Ft. 1.009 Acres 

 
As illustrated above, the current lots do not meet the size requirements of either zone.  As 
this lots are currently platted, they do not need to meet the size requirements in order for 
them to be developed. In addition to these requirements, the site will be required to 
conform to all other development requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC).  
 
PLATTING STATUS: The property was platted in 1973 as part of the Detenbeck and 
Barnhart Subdivision Plat.   
 
SITE HISTORY: The property was annexed into the city limits in 1997 and received a zone 
change from Suburban Development (SD) to GB in 2001 to allow commercial uses. 
Initially, the applicant had sought a GC zone for the property.  At the time the Planning and 
Zoning Commission did not feel that GC was appropriate for the surrounding area due to 
close residential proximity and the Commission also did not feel the GC request was in 
conformance with the Future Land Use Plan at the time.  Therefore, the Commission   
recommended a lesser zone of GB.   
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current Comprehensive 
Plan (latest update in 2009) indicates Business Commercial for the subject property.  The 
Comprehensive Plan further indicates that  GB or GC would  be an appropriate zoning 
district for Business Commercial. The property’s current zoning of GB is also in 
conformance. 
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Wagon Trail and Bardet St, both local streets, with a minimum of 60’ right-of-
way. For development on the lots at the rear of the subject property, Bardet will have to be 
lengthened and capped with a cul-de-sac or other approved turn around.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel does have access to public water and 
public sewer.  
 



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-09Z 

Page 3 
 

IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed zone change, 
if approved, is not anticipated to have extensive negative impacts on existing or future 
developments in the immediate area.  The proposed area already consists of a number 
of office/warehouse buildings that have been in operation for a number of years and is 
surrounded by other vacant or developed commercial sites.  The comprehensive plan 
anticipated this area becoming more commercialized in the future and this zone change 
would be the in conformance with this vision.   
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan is not required for a zone change, however 
the property is currently partially developed.   
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed zone change request.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Zone Change 2013-09Z 
as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. Approval of the zone change  will result in conformance with the surrounding zoning 
as well as current and future land uses. 
 

2. The proposed zone change should not have any significant negative impact on the 
surrounding properties and developments. 
 

3. The proposed zone change is in compliance with the approved Future Land Use 
Plan. 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents  
 Related Documents 

 



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-09Z 

Page 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Zone Change 2013-09Z
Southwest Corner of Bardet 
and Wagon Trail

NS

R-2

R-1

R-3 GB

Brazoria

HARKEY RD

WAGON TRAIL RD

BARDET ST

CANTU RD

OCHOA RD

¯0 140 28070 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Abutter Map
Zone Change 2013-09Z
Southwest Corner of Bardet 
and Wagon Trail

Brazoria

HARKEY RD

WAGON TRAIL RD

BARDET ST

CANTU RD

OCHOA RD

¯0 140 28070 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Zone Change 2013-09Z
SW Corner of Bardet and Wagon Trail - GB to GC

Name Address City State Zip

VINEYARD CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP OF 

PEARLAND PO BOX 1577 PEARLAND TX 77588-1577

EXPRE REALTY LTD 3219 OLD ALVIN RD PEARLAND TX 77581-5211

BUSH ARTHUR J & MARY 8239 LANHAM LN HOUSTON TX 77075-2656

CLARK HORACE SCOTT 5909 BARDET ST PEARLAND TX 77584

PEARLAND ELKS LODGE #2732 PO BOX 2251 PEARLAND TX 77588-2251

JOHNSTON FAMILY HOLDINGS 5617 MEGAN PEARLAND TX 77584

SHAY SHAY TRUST 9707 1102 BARKLY CT PEARLAND TX 77581

ESPARZA MARIA CARMEN 2853 WAGON TRAIL RD PEARLAND TX 77584

LIGHTFOOT C J PO BOX 871 PEARLAND TX 77588-0871

AMCU INC 2920 WAGON TRL RD PEARLAND TX 77584

MENDEZ MIREYA 715 BROOKS ST HOUSTON TX 77009-8504

GOLFIS EVAN G & MARIA DE VIVEIROS 3811 HOUSTON LAKE DR PEARLAND TX 77581-4795



FLUP Map
Zone Change 2013-09Z
Southwest Corner of Bardet 
and Wagon Trail

Business Commercial

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

Medium Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

Brazoria

HARKEY RD

WAGON TRAIL RD

BARDET ST

CANTU RD

OCHOA RD

¯0 140 28070 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Zone Change 2013-09Z
Southwest Corner of Bardet 
and Wagon Trail

HARKEY RD

WAGON TRAIL RD

BARDET ST

CANTU RD

OCHOA RD

¯0 140 28070 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





























P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

B 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 

TEXAS, TO BE HELD JUNE 17, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE COUNCIL 

CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2013-10Z 
 
A request of Lynn Almond of Bay Area Equestrian Properties, LP, applicant and 
owner, for approval of a zone change from the Single Family Residential (R-1) 
zone to the General Business (GB) zone on the following described property, to 
wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being lots 22-29 and lots 34-39 in a subdivision of 14.458 acres 
of land out of the Narregang Subdivision, Plat Records of Brazoria County, Texas.  

 
General Location:  1908 Broadway St.  
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 

 

A. STAFF REPORT 

B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 

IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 

 

V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 

please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 

meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-10Z 

Page 1 
 

       

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF JUNE 17, 2013 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2013-10Z 
 

A request of Lynn Almond of Bay Area Equestrian Properties, LP, applicant and 
owner, for approval of a zone change from the Single Family Residential (R-1) zone 
to the General Business (GB) zone on the following described property, to wit: 

 

Legal Description: Being lots 22-29 and lots 34-39 in a subdivision of 14.458 acres 
of land out of the Narregang Subdivision, Plat Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

General Location: 1908 Broadway St, Pearland, TX 
 

APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application will be considered as follows: 
 

Planning and Zoning Commission:        June 17, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:                July 8, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:          July 22, 2013* 

 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Lynn Almond of Bay Area Equestrian, applicant and owner, is requesting 
approval of a zone change from the Single Family (R-1) zone to the General Business 
(GB) zone for the above referenced location.  If approved, this zone change will allow 
the applicant to add a snow cone business as an accessory use to the existing 
equestrian business as well as bring the property into a zoning district which is more 
compatible with the existing development.  
 
The current use is permitted in the R-1 zone through a Specific Use Permit (SUP) that 
was approved in 1994. The newly proposed accessory use would not be permitted 
under the approved SUP.  The zone change to GB would allow both the uses to 
operate on site in conformance with the Unified Development Code (UDC) classified in 
the land use matrix as a Private Club and Food Sales On or Off Premise.  
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 

 Zoning Land Use 
North General Commercial (GC) Mini Storage 
South Single Family (R-1/R-2) Single Family Subdivision  



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-10Z 

Page 2 
 

East Single Family/General Bus. (R-1/GB) Church 

West Single Family/Office Prof. (R-1/OP) Commercial/Residential 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  As previously 
mentioned, the property is currently zoned Single Family (R-1). As the property is currently 
being requested to be rezoned to General Business (GB), a breakdown between those 
requirements is provided below: 
 
   R1   GB   Existing Site 
Lot Size:   8,800 sq ft  22,500 sq ft   20,000 sq ft  
Lot Width:   80’   150’   829’ 
Lot Depth:   90’   125’   776’ 
Front Setback: 25’   25’   ~25’  
Rear Setback: 20’   20’   ~25’ 
Side Setback : 7.5’   10’   ~100’ 
 
In addition to these requirements, the site will be required to conform to the landscaping, 
parking, and façade standards of the Unified Development Code upon expansion. Parking 
may need to be added to comply with the commercial guidelines for the proposed use.  
Landscaping, including shrubs to screen the additional parking will be required.  The 
current façade on the existing equestrian center would not need to be upgraded but the 
new facility added to the site would need to be masonry in order to comply with the 
commercial standards. SUP’s were eliminated with the adoption of the UDC in 2006 and 
replaced with the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) process.   
 
PLATTING STATUS: The property is not currently platted.  Platting would be required for 
any future expansion.  
 
SITE HISTORY: The site is currently home to an existing equestrian center which was 
constructed in 1994 after an approval of a SUP.  The SUP permitted the proposed 
commercial use in the existing R-1 zone with the following conditions: 
 

1. Site shall be limited to 60 stalls, with a future 20 stall expansion (maximum 500 
square feet).  

2. Horses on the premises shall be full board only (all care provided by BAEC). 
3. Most horses shall be kept in a stall overnight – pasture board limited to a 

maximum of 5 horses, barring natural disaster or acts of God. 
4. Facilities shall be equipped with an automated fly-spray system.  
5. Manure shall be stored in covered dumpster and removed twice per week.  
6. Paved driveway and parking shall be provided with allowance for future 

parking. 
7. No alcohol or smoking shall be allowed on the premises. 
8. Trailer storage shall be allowed only behind the front building line. 
9. No occupied motor homes shall be allowed over night. 
10. Signage shall be located within the 60’ access easement and shall comply with 



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-10Z 

Page 3 
 

the Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance. 
11. Commercial development shall be confined to a 500’ x 500’ area as shown in 

“Exhibit C” 
 
With the approval of this requested zone change, the above referenced SUP with the 11 
conditions will become void and no longer enforceable.  All land use regulations will revert 
back to the UDC.   

 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current Comprehensive 
Plan (latest update in 2009) indicates Retail, Offices, and Services for the subject property. 
 The Comprehensive Plan further indicates that GB would be an appropriate zoning district 
for Retail, Offices, and Services. The property’s current zoning of Single Family (R-1) is not 
considered an appropriate zoning district for the Retail, Offices, and Services designation 
in the Comprehensive Plan.   
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Broadway, a major thoroughfare, with a minimum of 120’ right-of-way. Access 
to the site is achieved via an access easement from Broadway. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel does have access to public water and 
public sewer. 
 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed zone change, 
if approved, is not anticipated to have any negative impacts on existing or future 
developments in the immediate area.  The proposed site is located next to an existing 
church and has frontage on Broadway. The site currently is occupied by a commercial 
equestrian center.  The owner would like to add a small building to the property that will 
serve as a small snow cone stand and store with the main purpose being to serve 
existing customers/clients of the equestrian center.  This is not anticipated to have a 
significant impact to the surrounding properties or land uses. All required buffering 
between this use and any adjacent residential uses will be provided by the applicant. 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the future land use plan.   
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan is not required for a zone change, however 
the property is currently developed.   
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.     



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-10Z 

Page 4 
 

 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed zone change request.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Zone Change 2013-10Z 
as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. Approval of the zone change  will result in conformance with the surrounding zoning 
as well as current and future land uses. 
 

2. The proposed zone change should not have any significant negative impact on the 
surrounding properties and developments. 
 

3. The proposed zone change will bring the property into compliance with the 
approved Future Land Use Plan. 
 

4. The proposed zone change would bring an existing use (Private Club) into further 
compliance with the zoning designation. The zone change will enable the site to be 
developed for other non-residential uses that would be permitted in GB.  

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents  
 Related Documents 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Zone Change 2013-10Z
1908 Broadway

R-1

GC

GB

R-2

NS

PUD

OP

Brazoria

BROADWAY ST

HAMM RD

WINDFERN DR
WINDCREST C

T

YOST B
LVD

LONGHERRIDGE DR
SHADY CREEK DRCANYON CREEK CT

STONECREST WAY

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Abutterl Map
Zone Change 2013-10Z
1908 Broadway

Brazoria

BROADWAY ST

HAMM RD

WINDFERN DR
WINDCREST C

T

YOST B
LVD

LONGHERRIDGE DR
SHADY CREEK DRCANYON CREEK CT

STONECREST WAY

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Zone Change 2013-10Z
1908 Broadway. - R-1 to GB

Name Address City State Zip

CONFIDENTIAL 3406 STONECREST CT PEARLAND TX 77584

BRAZORIA CO DRAINAGE #4 4805 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-3934

HIRED HANDS DAY SPA 1920 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-5608

BROWN BEVERLY L 1916 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-5608

ALMOND LYNN JANETTE 2020 STONE CREST WAY PEARLAND TX 77584

ADAMS WILLIARD & LINDA 3408 STONECREST CT PEARLAND TX 77581-6459

HEITZMAN DAVID ETUX 3403 STONECREST CT PEARLAND TX 77581-6460

LANGFORD WALTER C III & JANIE S 3405 STONECREST CT PEARLAND TX 77581-6460

BOYD JOHN R & ROBIN E 3601 OAK HOLLOW DR N PEARLAND TX 77581-6178

MYERS GREG A & MARTHA 1909 OAK HOLLOW DR E PEARLAND TX 77581-6173

SCOTT VICTOR W & KIMBERLY C 3603 OAK HOLLOW DR N PEARLAND TX 77581-6178

PEARLAND UNITED PENTECOSTA PO BOX 394 PEARLAND TX 77588-0394

BAY AREA EQUESTRIAN PROPERTIES 1908 E BROADWAY PEARLAND TX 77584

CLINE BRUCE W & SHARON 2005 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-5563

WCW INTERESTS P O BOX 760 PEARLAND TX 77581

PALMER KELLY JEAN 2001 LONGHERRIDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77581-6111

VANNOY JOSEPHINE C 3403 LONGHERRIDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77581-6113

ORDENEAUX RODDY J & MICHALYN MILLER 

ORDENEAUX PO BOX 1721 PEARLAND TX 77588-1721

BROWN CAROLYN F & JUDITH L HANUS 3407 LONGHERRIDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77581

FIRST CHURCH OF PEARLAND THE 1850 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-5606

GRIFFIN KENNETH R & BOBBY 2016 FAIRWOOD ST PEARLAND TX 77581-6442

FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC 14221 DALLAS PKWY STE 200 DALLAS TX 75254-2962

KLOUDA MARK & NORMA 2021 STONECREST WAY PEARLAND TX 77581-6462

WILKERSON GEORGE A & LAURA S 3402 STONECREST CT PEARLAND TX 77581-6459

CLARK JAMES C & PHYLIS L 2019 STONECREST WAY PEARLAND TX 77581-6462

NIBS PEARLAND LLC 7500 BELLAIRE BLVD #210 HOUSTON TX 77036

HOWARD LARRY & LYNN 1908 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-5608

BUEHLER FREDERICK B & WONG DEBORAH 

M 3404 STONECREST CT PEARLAND TX 77581-6459



FLUP Map
Zone Change 2013-10Z
1908 Broadway

Low Density Residential Retail, Offices and Services

Medium Density Residential

Parks

Brazoria

BROADWAY ST

HAMM RD

WINDFERN DR
WINDCREST C

T

YOST B
LVD

LONGHERRIDGE DR

OAK CREEK DR

STONECREST WAY

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Zone Change 2013-10Z
1908 Broadway

BROADWAY ST

HAMM RD

WINDFERN DR
WINDCREST C

T

YOST B
LVD

LONGHERRIDGE DR
SHADY CREEK DRCANYON CREEK CT

STONECREST WAY

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



























P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

C 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 

TEXAS, TO BE HELD JUNE 17, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE COUNCIL 

CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2013-11Z 
 
A request of Chris Lynch of Gehan Homes, LP, applicant, on behalf of T & B 
Alexander Family Ltd. Partnership, owner, for approval of a zone change from 
the General Commercial (GC) zone to the Single Family Residential (R-1) zone 
on the following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being a 19.4462 acre tract of land located in the H.T.&B.R.R. 
Co. Survey, section 1, Abstract No. 233 and the D.H.H. Hunter Survey, Abstract No. 
76, Brazoria County, Texas, being a part of Lot 42, Zychlinski Subdivision, a map or 
plat of which is recorded in Volume 29 on Page 43, and the remainder of Lot 4, 
Walcotts Pearland Subdivision, a map or plat of which is recorded in Volume 35 on 
Page 241, also being all or part of the certain 11.291 acre tract and 58.723 acre tract 
conveyed by the Estate of Anten Halik to A. Guy Crouch, Jr. per deed dated 
December 15, 1972 and recorded in Volume 1143 o n page 854, all referenced 
deeds and maps are recorded in the Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location:  Old Alvin Rd approximately 500 feet south of McHard Rd. 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 

 

A. STAFF REPORT 

B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 

IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 

 

V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 

please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 

meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-11Z 

Page 1 
 

       

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF JUNE 17, 2013 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2013-11Z 
 

A request of Chris Lynch of Gehan Homes, LP, applicant, on behalf of T & B 
Alexander Family Ltd. Partnership, owner, for approval of a zone change from the 
General Commercial (GC) zone to the Single Family Residential (R-1) zone, to wit: 

 

Legal Description: Being a 19.4462 acre tract of land located in the H.T.&B.R.R. 
Co. Survey, section 1, Abstract No. 233 and the D.H.H. Hunter Survey, Abstract No. 
76, Brazoria County, Texas, being a part of Lot 42, Zychlinski Subdivision, a map or 
plat of which is recorded in Volume 29 on Page 43, and the remainder of Lot 4, 
Walcotts Pearland Subdivision, a map or plat of which is recorded in Volume 35 on 
Page 241, also being all or part of the certain 11.291 acre tract and 58.723 acre 
tract conveyed by the Estate of Anten Halik to A. Guy Crouch, Jr. per deed dated 
December 15, 1972 and recorded in Volume 1143 o n page 854, all referenced 
deeds and maps are recorded in the Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

General Location: Old Alvin Rd approximately 500 feet south of McHard Rd. 
 

APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application will be considered as follows: 
 

Planning and Zoning Commission:        June 17, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:                July 8, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:          July 22, 2013* 

 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Chris Lynch of Gehan Homes, LP, applicant, on behalf of T & B Alexander 
Family Ltd. Partnership, owner, for approval of a zone change from the General 
Commercial (GC) zone to the Single Family Residential (R-1) zone for the above 
referenced location.  If approved, this zone change will allow the applicant to develop a 
single family subdivision on 19.4 acres of vacant property.    
 
The site is currently vacant and the applicant has applied for a proposed cluster plan 
that will consist of 56 single family lots with 3 acres of open space with amenities 
consisting of parks, gazebos, trails, and playgrounds. The Cluster Development Plan is 
being proposed concurrently with this zone change request.  
 



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-11Z 

Page 2 
 

 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 

 Zoning Land Use 
North General Commercial (GC) Vacant 
South Multi Family (MF) Apartment Complex  

East Planned Development (PD) Lakes of Highland Glen 

West General Commercial (GC) Vacant/Water Tank 

 
 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  As previously 
mentioned, the property is currently zoned General Commercial (GC). As the property is 
currently being requested to be rezoned to Single Family (R-1), a breakdown between 
those requirements is provided below: 
 
   R-1   GC   Existing Site 
Lot Size:   8,800 sq ft  22,500 sq ft   19.4 acres 
Lot Width:   80’   150’   600 
Lot Depth:   90’   125’   1350’ 
Front Setback: 25’   25’    n/a 
Rear Setback: 20’   20’    n/a 
Side Setback : 7.5’   10’    n/a 
 
In addition to these requirements, the site will be required to be in full compliance with all 
other development requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC). 
 
PLATTING STATUS: The property is not currently platted.  Platting would be required prior 
to development.   
 
SITE HISTORY: The property was annexed into the city in 1960 and is currently vacant.  
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current Comprehensive 
Plan (latest update in 2009) indicates a split between Offices and High Density Residential 
for the subject property.  The Comprehensive Plan further indicates that R-1 would not be 
an appropriate zoning district for Offices and High Density Residential. The property’s 
current zoning of GC is not considered an appropriate zoning district for the Offices and 
High Density Residential designation in the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Though this zone change would not be in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan, 
staff feels that with the approval of the zone change and cluster plan for a residential 
subdivision north of McHard, and with the proximity to the elementary school at the 



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-11Z 

Page 3 
 

southeast corner of McHard and Old Alvin, this site lends itself more towards residential 
use as opposed to commercial.    
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Old Alvin, a major collector, with a minimum of 80’ right-of-way.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel does have access to public water and 
public sewer. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed zone change, 
if approved, is not anticipated to have any negative impacts on existing or future 
developments in the immediate area.  The proposed site is located adjacent to an 
existing apartment complex and across the street from an elementary school and 
existing residential subdivision.  Though it is not in conformance with the future land use 
plan, it is believed that this proposed use would be a good fit for the surrounding area.    
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan is not required for a zone change. As 
previously mentioned, a Cluster Development Plan has been submitted and is currently 
under review.  
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed zone change request.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Zone Change 2013-11Z 
as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. Approval of the zone change  will result in conformance with the surrounding zoning 
as well as current land uses. 
 

2. The proposed zone change should not have any significant negative impact on the 
surrounding properties and developments. 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 



 
 

JPH 06-17-13 
Zone Change 2013-11Z 

Page 4 
 

 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents  
 Related Documents 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Zone Change 2013-11Z
Old Alvin Rd.
500 ft. south of McHard

GC

MF

R-1

PUD

M-1

R-2

Brazoria

MCHARD RDOLD ALVIN RD

HALIK

ALICE

SPRING GLEN LN

CALICO CANYON LN

WHITE WILLOW LN

PR
OF

AX
 D

R

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Abutter Map
Zone Change 2013-11Z
Old Alvin Rd.
500 ft. south of McHard

Brazoria

MCHARD RDOLD ALVIN RD

HALIK

ALICE

SPRING GLEN LN

CALICO CANYON LN

WHITE WILLOW LN

PR
OF

AX
 D

R

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Zone Change 2013-11Z
Old Alvin 500 ft. south of McHard - GC  to R-1

Name Address City State Zip

KOZA INTERESTS LTD & ALVAREZ INTERESTS 

LTD & RICHARD ASHLEY 1603 N MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581-2803

ASSOCIATED PROPERTIES INC PO BOX 898 PEARLAND TX 77588-0898

ALEXANDER T & B FAMILY LTD PRTNSHP 2411 PARK AVE PEARLAND TX 77581-4233

168 OAKBRIDGE LLC 1710 OLD ALVIN RD PEARLAND TX 77581-3007

MKH PROPERTIES CO LTD 4505 WASATCH BLVD SALT LAKE CTY UT 84124-4709

LAKES AT HIGHLAND GLEN COMMUNITY 

ASSOC INC PO BOX 218844 HOUSTON TX 77218-8844

ROBINSON JARED SETH & BETH J 1702 SPRING GLEN LN PEARLAND TX 77581-5589

ELICERIO OSIEL A 1711 N AVENUE M FREEPORT TX 77541-3619

RAJU PALIVELA P TRUSTEE 12121 RICHMOND AVE STE 220 HOUSTON TX 77092



FLUP Map
Zone Change 2013-11Z
Old Alvin Rd.
500 ft. south of McHard

Offices

Industrial

Low Density Residential

High Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)Business Commercial

Parks

Brazoria

MCHARD RDOLD ALVIN RD

HALIK

ALICE

SPRING GLEN LN

CALICO CANYON LN

WHITE WILLOW LN

PR
OF

AX
 D

R

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Zone Change 2013-11Z
Old Alvin Rd.
500 ft. south of McHard

MCHARD RDOLD ALVIN RD

HALIK

ALICE

SPRING GLEN LN

CALICO CANYON LN

WHITE WILLOW LN

PR
OF

AX
 D

R

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





































P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

D 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    06/12/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Master Plat of Shadow Ridge 

 
 

 Old Business         New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry Gilberts and associates, 
applicant, on behalf of Ralph S. Davis Family Bypass Trust,  owner for approval of 
a Master Plat of Shadow Ridge, a commercial and residential subdivision on 48 
acres of land, generally located at the 13000 Block of Broadway. 

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
6/13/2013 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 6/17/2013 
Master Plat – Shadow Ridge 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF JUNE 17, 2013 
 

 
MASTER PLAT OF SHADOW RIDGE 
 

A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry Gilberts and associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Ralph S. Davis Family Bypass Trust,  owner for approval of a Master 
Plat of Shadow Ridge, a commercial and residential subdivision on 48 acres of 
land, generally located at the 13000 Block of Broadway. 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 48 acres of land out of the William Pettus 
League Survey, A-68 City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Fort Bend County, 
Texas.  

 
           General Location: 13000 Block of Broadway 

  
 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Master Plat of Shadow Ridge. The property 
contains a total of 48 acres and is part of the Shadow Creek Ranch Planned 
Development.  The property has 120 proposed residential lots and 2 commercial tracts 
totaling approximately 8.3 acres. The property is zoned Planned Development.  As the 
area is proposed to be developed as both residential and commercial, two base zoning 
districts will apply. For the residential area, the R-4 residential zoning classification will 
serve as the base zoning district. For the commercial area, the GB zoning classification 
will serve as the base zoning district, as is the case with other commercial areas in 
Shadow Creek.  
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  As discussed above, the property is currently zoned 
Planned Development (PD).  As this is part of the Shadow Creek Ranch Planned 
Development, this tract is governed by the Land Use and Urban Development 
Ordinance.   
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North Planned Development (PD) Single Family Residential 
South Planned Development (PD) Single Family Residential 
East Planned Development (PD) Single Family Residential 
West Planned Development (PD) Single Family Residential 

 
 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 6/17/2013 
Master Plat – Shadow Ridge 

Page 2 
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Future Land Use 
designation for the subject land is Medium Density Residential. The approved 
Comprehensive Plan further indicates that one of the corresponding zones for this land 
use is R-4.  Therefore, the residential portion of the property would be in conformance 
with the comprehensive plan.  The land development plan approved as part of the 
Shadow Creek Planned Development does permit flexibility in land uses.    
 
PLATTING STATUS: This is the first plat for the subject property.  A preliminary and 
final plat will be required for the residential phases of this development.  The 
commercial tracts would be platted as Minor Plats.  
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject parcel contains 
frontage on Broadway, which is a major thoroughfare with a minimum right-of-way of 
120’. All right-of-way has been acquired and the road is built to its full width.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  Public water and sewer are available for this site, but 
will have to be extended throughout the site by the applicant.  
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This request has been reviewed by the city’s Development 
Review Committee and there were no additional comments.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Master Plat of 
Shadow Ridge as proposed by the applicant, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed master plat will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the comprehensive plan.   
 

3. This request is in conformance with the approved Planned Development and the 
Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance.   
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity and Zoning Map 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Map 
 Master Plat of Shadow Ridge 

 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Master Plat of
Shadow Ridge

PUD

Brazoria

Fort Bend

BROADWAY ST

WINDWARD BAY DR

FIELD HOLLOW DR

BI
SC

AY
NE

 B
AY

 D
R

WEST TRAIL DR

MOONLIT LAKE LN

HICKORY SPRINGS LN

DURANGO PASS DR

WILD LILAC CT

HIGHLAND LAKE LN

ALDER GLEN LN

¯0 390 780195 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map
Master Plat of
Shadow Ridge

A-1/2 Ac. Lots (Suburban Res)

Medium Density Residential

Low Density Residential

Parks

Business Commercial

Brazoria

Fort Bend

BROADWAY ST

WINDWARD BAY DR

TAMARA CREEK LN

FIELD HOLLOW DR

BI
SC

AY
NE

 B
AY

 D
R

WEST TRAIL DR

MOONLIT LAKE LN

BENTVINE DR

WILD LILAC CT

HIGHLAND LAKE LN

¯0 390 780195 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Master Plat of
Shadow Ridge

BROADWAY ST

WINDWARD BAY DR

TAMARA CREEK LN

FIELD HOLLOW DR

BI
SC

AY
NE

 B
AY

 D
R

WEST TRAIL DR

HI
LL

 C
RE

EK
 B

EN
D

MOONLIT LAKE LN

HICKORY SPRINGS LN

DURANGO PASS DR

WILD LILAC CT

HIGHLAND LAKE LN

¯0 390 780195 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 E

 
 
 

 

dcody
Typewritten Text
1. Commissioners Activity Report2. Election of Officers, July 1, 20133. Next P&Z/JPH Regular Meeting - July 15, 20134. Unified Development Code Updates (T-15 and T-16)



 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURN  
 

MEETING 


	1. P&Z Agenda Coversheet.pdf
	2. June 17, 2013 P&Z Agenda
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	4. June 3, 2013 P&Z Agenda Minutes
	5. NEW BUSINESS
	6. AGENDA ITEM A
	7. 2013-09Z
	1.  Zone Change 2013-09Z JPH Agenda.pdf
	2. Zone Change 2013-09Z Staff Report
	3. Zone Change 2013-09Z Vicinity & Zoning Map
	4. Zone Change 2013-09Z Abutter Map
	5. Zone Change 2013-09Z Abutters List
	6. Zone Change 2013-09Z FLUP Map
	7. Zone Change 2013-09Z Aerial Map
	8. Zone Change 2013-09Z Application Packet

	8. AGENDA ITEM B
	9. 2013-10Z
	1.  Zone Change 2013-10Z JPH Agenda.pdf
	2. Zone Change 2013-10Z Staff Report
	3. Zone Change 2013-10Z Vicinity & Zoning Map
	4. Zone Change 2013-010Z Abutter Map
	5. Zone Change 2013-10Z Abutters List
	6. Zone Change 2013-10Z FLUP Map
	7. Zone Change 2013-10Z Aerial Map
	8. Zone Change 2013-10Z Application Packet

	10. AGENDA ITEM C
	11. 2013-11Z
	1.  Zone Change 2013-11Z JPH Agenda.pdf
	2. Zone Change 2013-11Z Staff Report
	3. Zone Change 2013-11Z Vicinity & Zoning Map
	4. Zone Change 2013-011Z Abutter Map
	5. Zone Change 2013-11Z Abutters List
	6. Zone Change 2013-11Z FLUP Map
	7. Zone Change 2013-11Z Aerial Map
	8. Zone Change 2013-11Z Application Packet

	12. AGENDA ITEM D
	13. Shadow Ridge Packet
	1. Shadow Ridge Master Agenda Request.pdf
	2. Shadow Ridge Master Staff Report
	3. Vicinity
	4. Futurelanduse
	5. Aerial
	6. Shadow Ridge Master Plat

	14. AGENDA ITEM E
	15. ADJOURN MEETING



